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1                     PROCEEDINGS

2

3            JUDGE YODER:  By the authority vested

4 in me by the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now

5 call Docket 13-0531.  It's a complaint filed by

6 Sherman and Lisa Imler against Ameren Illinois

7 Company.  The complaint is to a deposit request in

8 Danville, Illinois.

9            Mrs. Imler?

10            MS. IMLER:  Yes, sir.

11            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Would you state

12 your name and address for the record, please?

13            MS. IMLER:  My name is Lisa Imler.  My

14 address is 311 Forrest Street, Danville, Illinois

15 61832.

16            JUDGE YODER:  And for the Company?

17            MR. DEARMONT:  Thank you, Judge.  Eric

18 Dearmont on behalf of Ameren Illinois Company d/b/a

19 Ameren Illinois.  My business address is 1901

20 Chouteau Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63166.

21            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Is there

22 anyone else wishing to enter their appearance in

23 this docket?

24                (No response)



28

1            JUDGE YODER:  Let the record reflect no

2 response.

3            We're here for an evidentiary hearing

4 on the complaint filed by the Imlers.  I assume we

5 are ready to proceed today.

6            MR. DEARMONT:  That's correct, Judge.

7            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  And we have

8 Ms. Imler and Melanie Brown to testify.

9            Would you both stand and raise your

10 right hands?

11                (Whereupon the witnesses were duly

12                sworn by Judge Yoder.)

13                     LISA IMLER,

14 of lawful age, produced, sworn, and examined on

15 behalf of the Complainants, testifies and says:

16            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Okay.

17 Mrs. Imler, you go first because you're the

18 Complainant.  So I will just walk you through

19 briefly putting your testimony into evidence.  I'm

20 trying to remember what's -- the questions that are

21 asked.  And then Mr. Dearmont can cross-examine you

22 on your testimony.

23            MS. IMLER:  Okay.

24            JUDGE YODER:  And you filed in this
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1 complaint what was -- on January 21st, 2014, a

2 document that was captioned Complainants Oral

3 Testimony; is that correct?

4            MS. IMLER:  Yes, Your Honor.

5            JUDGE YODER:  And that was, it looks

6 like, three pages of testimony and then various

7 pages of attachments and that comprises your

8 pre-filed testimony.  It looks like Attachments A

9 through H.  And that is your pre-filed testimony in

10 this docket?

11            MS. IMLER:  Yes, Your Honor.

12            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  And it's signed by

13 both you and Mr. Sherman Imler.  He's not here

14 today; is that correct?

15            MS. IMLER:  That's correct.

16            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  So you wish this

17 to be accepted into evidence as your testimony in

18 this docket?

19            MS. IMLER:  Yes, Your Honor.

20            JUDGE YODER:  If you were asked

21 questions pertaining to the answers -- you gave it

22 more of a statement format than a question/answer,

23 but is there anything in here that you would change

24 or correct here?
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1            MS. IMLER:  No, Your Honor.

2            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  All right then, do

3 you have any cross-examination of Mrs. Imler?

4            MR. DEARMONT:  I do have.

5            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

6            MR. DEARMONT:  Just a few questions.

7                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

8 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

9        Q.  Good afternoon again, Ms. Imler.  How

10 are you today?

11        A.  Fine.

12        Q.  Good.  I think we've spoken on the

13 phone a few times previously and also chatted for a

14 minute before we went on the record today.  But

15 again, my name is Eric Dearmont.  I'm an attorney

16 for Ameren Illinois.  And obviously, we're here to

17 talk about your pending complaint case against the

18 Company.  I hope to keep this short and sweet, but

19 that will obviously depend a bit on your responses

20 and how we proceed.

21            Any questions for me before we get

22 started?

23        A.  No.

24        Q.  Okay.  You stated for the record that
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1 your husband is not here with you today; correct?

2        A.  Correct.

3        Q.  Okay.  Your husband's name is Sherman?

4        A.  Correct.

5        Q.  Okay.  Neither you nor your husband are

6 attorneys; right?

7        A.  No, sir.

8        Q.  I'd like to ask you a few questions

9 about your home.  You said the address is 311

10 Forrest Street in Danville, Illinois?

11        A.  Correct.

12        Q.  Okay.  How far is that from

13 Springfield?

14        A.  Approximately two hours.

15        Q.  Okay.  How many people live in

16 Danville?

17        A.  I think around 30,000 maybe.

18        Q.  Okay.  How long have you lived there?

19        A.  I've lived there since 1995.  I'm

20 originally from Danville.  I moved to Louisiana for

21 approximately twelve years and relocated back in

22 '95.

23        Q.  The home that you live in at 311

24 Forrest Street, this may sound kind of like an odd
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1 question, but is that what would be considered a

2 typical residential home?

3        A.  Typical in what manner?

4        Q.  Good question.  This is going to sound

5 a little odd perhaps, but you don't live in some

6 type of converted school building or commercial

7 structure; do you?

8        A.  I live in an elementary school that was

9 closed in 1975.  It was used as a -- the

10 firefighters had it as a union hall and then we

11 purchased it in '95 and we utilize it as our home.

12 Correct.

13        Q.  And has that been your primary

14 residence since 1995?

15        A.  Yes, sir.

16        Q.  Okay.  Approximately how many square

17 feet is that residence?

18        A.  I couldn't give an approximate square

19 footage.  There's eight classrooms that are 1200

20 square feet.  It has two foyers, a basement, an

21 attic.  So I would say over 20,000 square feet

22 easy.  I'm not -- I don't have an idea.

23        Q.  Understood.  And I'm not going to hold

24 you to specifics.
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1            What I'll call the residential portion

2 of that, do you inhabit that entire structure or

3 just a part of it?

4        A.  The entire structure.

5        Q.  Okay.  Have you made any substantial

6 improvements to that structure or building since

7 you purchased it in '95?

8        A.  Absolutely.

9        Q.  Okay.  For example, what have you done?

10        A.  Back in '95 when we purchased the

11 building, we upgraded electrical throughout the

12 building.  Water lines were totally replaced.  We

13 put a 50 by 50 metal roof over the auditorium.

14 Quite a substantial amount of renovations went into

15 the building.

16        Q.  You would agree with me, wouldn't you,

17 that most folks don't live in a residential

18 building or structure that's 20,000 square feet?

19        A.  It just depends on who you are.  We

20 play country music, so we have a lot of people that

21 travel with us at times.  We used to prior to my

22 husband being sick.  And it accommodated us for

23 having people come into town, didn't have to rent

24 motels.  There was a lot of rooms for guests.  We
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1 lived in the south quite a few years.  My husband's

2 from Texas.  So we had family come in a lot.  I

3 guess it's all what you're used to.  I lived in a

4 rather large home when I was growing up.

5        Q.  Sure.

6        A.  But it was a project that we undertook

7 to restore something, to give back to the community

8 basically.  We did restoration work before my

9 husband got sick, so it was a project.

10        Q.  I can --

11        A.  And then our home.

12        Q.  -- certainly appreciate a good project.

13 I guess there will always be exceptions or -- I'll

14 leave it at that.  But you would agree with me that

15 20,000 square feet is larger than the average

16 residential home; is that fair?

17        A.  I guess it could be.  There's a lot of

18 large homes throughout the country that are --

19        Q.  Okay.  You're a gas and electric

20 customer of Ameren Illinois; correct?

21        A.  Correct.

22        Q.  Okay.  You receive combination bills

23 every month?

24        A.  Correct.
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1        Q.  Would you agree with me that those

2 bills are fairly substantial?

3        A.  To the size of the structure, no, I

4 would not.

5        Q.  Okay.

6        A.  This is -- this is in regards to

7 previous billing before I purchased the building

8 with what the firefighters paid out monthly and

9 versus what I pay out, there's a significant

10 decrease since I purchased the building.

11        Q.  Okay.  On average, can you tell us,

12 perhaps over the course of this last heating

13 season, on a monthly basis how much was your bill?

14 And you can ballpark it for me.  That would be just

15 fine.

16        A.  Average bill for the entire year?

17        Q.  A month let's say.

18        A.  During the summer months our bill

19 averages around $300 and, of course, when we turn

20 on the gas, there's a substantial -- an increase in

21 the gas bill.  The only reason we use gas is

22 basically to heat the structure.

23        Q.  Okay.  Again, during the heating months

24 about how much every month is your bill on a
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1 combined gas and electric basis?

2        A.  About $1500 I would say would be an

3 average.

4        Q.  Have you ever had an energy efficiency

5 audit conducted on your home?

6        A.  Not at all.

7        Q.  You are a LIHEAP customer; correct?

8        A.  Correct.

9        Q.  Okay.  Have you ever looked to LIHEAP

10 or any similar types of programs to see if they

11 offer any type of weatherization programs or

12 offerings or anything like that?

13        A.  No, I have not.

14        Q.  Do you have a copy of your testimony in

15 front of you?

16        A.  I do.

17        Q.  Okay.  You may or may not need it, but

18 if you have it handy, that's likely to help here.

19 I want to ask you a few questions about the

20 timeline of activities relevant to your complaint.

21 Okay?

22        A.  Uh-huh.

23        Q.  And they really start with the

24 paragraph that's numbered 7 on the first page of



37

1 your complaint.  Are you with me?

2        A.  Correct.

3        Q.  Okay.  It's your testimony that on

4 August 2nd of 2013, which I'll submit to you I

5 think was a Friday, that you used Ameren Online to

6 submit a payment for $100.

7        A.  Correct.

8        Q.  And then August 5th, which I believe is

9 that -- the follow Monday, you used Ameren Online

10 to submit a payment in the amount of $500 that

11 would have been processed on August 19th, 2013;

12 correct?

13        A.  I went onto the online site to do a

14 deferred payment for the remaining balance of the

15 July 27th bill.

16        Q.  Okay.  That was on August 5th?

17        A.  Correct.

18        Q.  Okay.  And the point of this question

19 isn't really to haggle about what is a Deferred

20 Payment Arrangement or not, but on that Monday you

21 did something for $500?

22        A.  Correct.

23        Q.  Correct?

24        A.  I used the Ameren Online to receive
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1 bills, pay my bills, and schedule payments, yes.

2        Q.  Your testimony tells us that when you

3 submitted the $100 payment on Friday, August 2nd,

4 that you had not yet received a notice of

5 disconnection?

6        A.  Correct.

7        Q.  My question for you is that, did you

8 receive that notice of disconnection prior to

9 scheduling that $500 payment on Monday?

10        A.  I can't recall.  I may have.  I'm not

11 sure.  I don't remember.

12        Q.  You will agree with me, though, that at

13 some point prior to your disconnection you did

14 receive a notice from Ameren Illinois?

15        A.  Yes, I did.

16        Q.  And that notice of disconnection

17 contained a statement --

18        A.  I believe it reflects the amount

19 without the hundred dollar payment.  It reflected

20 the $391.  So I would say that maybe it crossed in

21 the mail.

22        Q.  Okay.

23        A.  Or after I made my payment.  Because it

24 requested 391, and a hundred dollars had already
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1 been made.  So it would have to be after the 2nd

2 I'm guessing.

3        Q.  That's helpful.  I know I paused there,

4 but let me try and get my whole question out a

5 little bit quicker than I threw it out last time.

6            You'll agree with me that you testified

7 that you received a notice of disconnection at some

8 time prior to the actual disconnection occurring?

9        A.  Correct, correct.

10        Q.  Okay.  And that notice of disconnection

11 contained a sheet or a pamphlet similar to what was

12 attached to Ms. Brown's testimony; correct?

13        A.  I couldn't tell you if that was

14 attached or not.

15        Q.  Okay.  Can't tell me one way or the

16 other?

17        A.  I don't recall if there was a pamphlet

18 in it or not.

19        Q.  Okay.  You have read Ms. Brown's

20 testimony at some point in the past; correct?

21        A.  Correct.

22        Q.  Okay.  And you understand that the

23 Company testifies that they mailed to you a notice

24 on approximately July 26th of 2013?
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1        A.  Yeah, about a week after my bill was

2 due, correct.

3        Q.  And the Company also testifies that it

4 followed up with you or your husband in a call on

5 August 1st of 2013?

6        A.  That's what Ameren had alleged.

7        Q.  Correct.  And that's my only question

8 for you right now --

9        A.  Okay.

10        Q.  -- is that regardless of whether or not

11 you agree or disagree, you understand that that's

12 our position?

13        A.  Correct.

14        Q.  Okay.  If you still have your testimony

15 in front of you, I'm going to read to you paragraph

16 number 24.  I think it's on the top of the third

17 page.

18            "Complainants did not receive a call

19 from Ameren's automated phone system prior to their

20 August 2nd, 2013, online transaction.  See attached

21 F, copies of missed calls and G received calls for

22 August 1st, 2013."

23            Did I read that correctly, paragraph

24 number 24?
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1        A.  Correct.

2        Q.  I'm sorry.  Yes?

3        A.  Yes, sir.

4        Q.  And then as you referenced in that

5 statement, you attached to your testimony, among

6 other attachments, an attachment labeled Attachment

7 F, which is labeled as Missed Calls?

8        A.  Correct.

9        Q.  And Attachment G, which is labeled as

10 Received Calls; correct?

11        A.  Correct.  For August 1st, yes.

12        Q.  We'll get there in just a second, but

13 my question for you, first of all, is, are you able

14 to give me even I guess the last four digits of the

15 phone number that these logs are associated with?

16        A.  0947.

17        Q.  And is that the same for both Exhibit

18 F --

19        A.  Yes, sir.

20        Q.  -- and Exhibit G?

21        A.  Yeah.  I thought it was provided on the

22 top of the detail, the call log.  I printed those

23 off the My AT&T site.

24        Q.  Okay.
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1        A.  So I thought -- was assuming they had

2 the numbers at the top.

3        Q.  Regardless, we've straightened it out

4 now.

5        A.  Okay.

6        Q.  Based upon further review, would you

7 agree with me, ma'am, that neither Attachment F or

8 Attachment G appear to go back to August 1st?

9        A.  Okay.  Yes, it does.  Bank of the West

10 called on 8/31 and a wireless caller called on 9/2,

11 which is -- which means that there was no received

12 calls between 8/31 and 9/2.  And on the call logs,

13 the missed calls, there are calls from 8/31/13 and

14 9/1/13.  There was only two.  One was from a

15 267-7178 and a 516-2933.

16            MR. DEARMONT:  Okay.  Let's go off the

17 record for just one second.

18                (Discussion off the record.)

19            JUDGE YODER:  Back on the record.

20            MS. IMLER:  I can provide the call

21 records from that date as well.

22        Q.  Let's again reflect the discussion that

23 we just had, but, Ms. Imler, you will agree with me

24 that the records attached as Attachments F and G to
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1 your direct testimony, they appear mainly to be

2 from the end of August and beginning of September

3 in 2013?

4        A.  Yeah.  I erred.

5        Q.  Correct?

6        A.  Correct.

7        Q.  You think you accidentally attached the

8 call records for the beginning of September as

9 opposed to the beginning of August?

10        A.  Absolutely.

11        Q.  Thank you.  You've been an Ameren

12 Illinois or I guess Legacy Company customer since

13 1995?

14        A.  Correct.

15        Q.  Okay.  And you have called Ameren's

16 customer service number on several occasions, I

17 assume?

18        A.  Absolutely.

19            MR. DEARMONT:  Okay.  Subject to a

20 quick review, I think that's probably all the

21 questions that I have.  If you'll just give me 30

22 seconds to review my notes, that's probably all I

23 have for you.

24            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.
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1            MR. DEARMONT:  Okay.

2            JUDGE YODER:  I just have a couple of

3 questions.

4                     EXAMINATION

5 QUESTIONS BY JUDGE YODER:

6        Q.  Mrs. Imler, you are an Ameren customer

7 for gas and electric today?

8        A.  Yes, sir.

9        Q.  Is that correct also?  So from 1995 up

10 through today?

11        A.  Yes, sir.

12            JUDGE YODER:  I don't think I have any

13 other questions.

14            Unless you have -- do you have anything

15 to clarify or question yourself about?

16            MS. IMLER:  Other than my phone

17 records --

18            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

19            MS. IMLER:  -- I can produce.  I'm

20 alleging that I did not receive a phone call.

21            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

22            MS. IMLER:  No one talked to Ameren or

23 received a phone call from Ameren.  And if I

24 provided the wrong dates, I can certainly produce
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1 or give you authorization to look at my phone

2 records.

3            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Any evidence in

4 this docket on behalf of Ameren?

5            MR. DEARMONT:  Yes, Judge.  I have with

6 me Ms. Brown this morning and I would call her to

7 testify at this time.

8            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Ms. Brown, you

9 were previously sworn?

10            MS. BROWN:  Yes, sir.

11            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Thank you.

12                  MELANIE S. BROWN,

13 of lawful age, produced, sworn, and examined on

14 behalf of the Respondent, testifies and says:

15                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

16 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

17        Q.  Good morning.  Would you please --

18 well, good afternoon now.  Would you please state

19 your name and spell your last name for the record?

20        A.  My name is Melanie S. Brown.  Last name

21 is spelled B-r-o-w-n.

22        Q.  By whom are you employed and in what

23 capacity?

24        A.  I'm employed by Ameren Illinois and I
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1 am a Credit and Collections Supervisor.

2        Q.  Are you the same Melanie S. Brown who

3 prepared and caused to be filed on February 14th of

4 this year testimony labeled as Ameren Exhibit 1.0

5 and a related attachment labeled as Ameren Exhibit

6 1.1?

7        A.  Yes, sir.

8        Q.  Do you have any corrections or perhaps

9 modifications to that testimony?

10        A.  I did want to make some clarifications.

11            Page 7, line 146, in my previous

12 testimony I'm giving an August 5th date.  That date

13 was actually when the payment was processed by

14 Ameren, but the Imlers did submit that payment

15 online the Friday before, August 2nd.

16        Q.  So let me ask you a clarifying question

17 there.  Your as-written sentence reads "On August

18 5th, 2013, they remitted $100, leaving a

19 disconnection-related balance of $297.03."

20 Correct?

21        A.  Correct.

22        Q.  And you're telling us now that the

23 Imlers remitted that payment on August 2nd, which

24 was processed by the Company on August 5th?
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1        A.  Yes.

2        Q.  Okay.  Regardless of the timing, that

3 still left a disconnection-related balance of

4 $297.03?

5        A.  Yes, sir.

6        Q.  Do you have any other corrections to

7 your testimony?

8        A.  There was one other.  On page 9, line

9 184, there is a picture of two message flags in our

10 system that are available.  But actually only the

11 top flag would have applied to the Imlers in this

12 situation.  Both exist but the first one is the one

13 that would have been seen in this case.

14        Q.  Let me ask again a quick clarifying

15 question of you.  So is it your testimony that the

16 Imlers likely would not have received the second

17 message here?

18        A.  That's correct.

19        Q.  And it's your testimony that the Imlers

20 likely would have received the first flag?

21        A.  Yes, sir.

22        Q.  Okay.  Do you have any other

23 corrections?

24        A.  No.
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1        Q.  Subject to those two corrections and

2 explanations, if you were asked the same questions

3 today as are contained in your testimony, would

4 your answers be the same or substantially the same?

5        A.  Yes, sir.

6            MR. DEARMONT:  Okay.  At this point I

7 would tender the witness for cross and move for the

8 admission of Ameren Exhibits 1.0 and 1.1 subject to

9 that cross.

10            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Thank you.

11            Let me go back before -- because I

12 forgot to.  Was there any objection to the

13 admission of Mrs. Imler's testimony that was filed

14 on January 21st, 2014?

15            MR. DEARMONT:  No objection.

16            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  That will be

17 admitted into evidence in this docket.

18                (Complainants' Exhibit 1

19                admitted.)

20            JUDGE YODER:  And we'll reserve for the

21 admission of Ms. Brown's testimony.

22            Do you have any questions to ask of

23 Ms. Brown today about her testimony?

24            MS. IMLER:  No.
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1            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  I'll try and ask a

2 couple.  Feel free to object if you want to.

3                     EXAMINATION

4 QUESTIONS BY JUDGE YODER:

5        Q.  Are you aware of the Imlers' payment

6 status right now on their bill?

7        A.  Yes.

8        Q.  Are they current?  Are they -- do they

9 have an arrearage?  Are they --

10        A.  The deposit amount in question has been

11 suspended pending the outcome of this complaint.

12        Q.  Right.

13        A.  But there is an additional arrearage.

14        Q.  Okay.  All right.  I don't think I have

15 any other -- well, let me just clarify the one

16 thing that you indicated on page 9.  You indicated

17 the second flagged item, which has a little i in a

18 box which indicates "The payment date you typed

19 falls after your current bill's due date, which

20 means that your bill could be paid late.", that

21 would not have been -- have shown up when

22 Mrs. Imler scheduled the payments?

23        A.  That would not have shown up.

24            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  All right.  I
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1 don't have any other questions then.

2            Mrs. Imler, any objection to the

3 admission of Ms. Brown's testimony in this docket?

4            MS. IMLER:  No, I do not.  I don't know

5 that I received it.  Would it have been on the

6 e-mail?  Because I've gotten one e-mail which I --

7            JUDGE YODER:  It should have been in

8 February.

9            MR. DEARMONT:  It's dated February

10 14th, so it should've been probably on that day.

11            MS. IMLER:  Let me see.  I only

12 received one filing and it was through an e-mail.

13 I didn't receive any hard copies, so I just want to

14 make sure this is --

15            MR. DEARMONT:  We don't normally mail

16 hard copies, so what you received from us would

17 have been an e-mail.  And to the best of my

18 knowledge, we've only filed two things in the

19 docket.  We filed an Answer some time ago, in

20 November, and then we filed the Direct Testimony in

21 February.

22            And I do -- I probably have an extra

23 copy.  We're here to work to get this resolved

24 today.  If you'd like to take a few minutes to
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1 review that, I certainly don't have any objection

2 to that.

3            MS. IMLER:  I'm just trying to locate

4 the one that I did receive.

5            MR. DEARMONT:  Sure.

6            JUDGE YODER:  Go off the record for a

7 minute here.

8                (Discussion off the record.)

9            JUDGE YODER:  Go ahead.

10                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

11 QUESTIONS BY MS. IMLER:

12        Q.  Now, your company does allow customers

13 to use Deferred Payment Agreements; correct?

14        A.  Yes.

15        Q.  And is it true that if I would have

16 contacted a live representative that I was able to

17 receive a deferred payment?

18        A.  Yes, that is true.

19        Q.  So the fact that I used the online

20 system, you're saying that that is the reason why

21 my agreement wasn't accepted because I used Ameren

22 Online rather than talk to a live representative?

23            MR. DEARMONT:  I'll object to that.  I

24 think that misstates her testimony a bit.  But
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1 subject to that objection, she may be able to help.

2            MS. IMLER:  Okay.  She stated that I

3 would have -- that had I spoke to a live

4 representative, I could have had a Deferred Payment

5 Arrangement.  So that means I used the Ameren

6 Online to make a payment arrangement and --

7            MR. DEARMONT:  I -- I can't testify.  I

8 think that's part of the dispute here about what

9 the online transaction was versus what it wasn't.

10 So I've lodged an objection here.

11            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Well, first,

12 identify where you're questioning her and then ask

13 her a question based on her testimony.

14            MS. IMLER:  Okay.  And I did not

15 receive this, so I apologize for not being able to

16 -- I was just kind of reading over it in general.

17            They were talking about on the Q

18 mention of a deferred payment, how is it relevant

19 to this dispute.  I was just referring to a

20 previous conversation with the representative that

21 said in order for the deferred payments to be

22 accepted you had to speak with a live

23 representative.  And I asked Mrs. Brown if I would

24 have spoken to a live representative, would I have
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1 been honored a Deferred Payment Arrangement, and

2 she had told me yes, that I would.  And then I was

3 just questioning that the reason that my online

4 transaction was the reason why I was not allowed to

5 have the deferred payment was because I used Ameren

6 Online rather than a live representative.  And I

7 was just asking her if that was for the deferred

8 payments, how it was relevant to my -- the dispute.

9 I apologize if I ramble.  But I was asking her if

10 I --

11            JUDGE YODER:  Well, go ahead and ask

12 her.

13            MS. IMLER:  And she answered yes.

14            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

15            MS. IMLER:  I asked her if I would have

16 spoke to a live representative would I have been

17 able to have a Deferred Payment Arrangement.

18        A.  Yes.

19            MS. IMLER:  And she said yes.

20            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

21        Q.  But you're stating that although your

22 Ameren Online facility allows you to make these

23 type of arrangements, customers aren't allowed to

24 utilize those?
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1            JUDGE YODER:  Clarify what you mean by

2 these type of arrangements.

3            MS. IMLER:  Oh, I'm sorry.

4        Q.  The Ameren Online payment center, when

5 customers utilize those to make payments, although

6 it allows a person to make a deferred payment, that

7 Ameren doesn't allow the consumers to utilize that

8 portion of Ameren Online?

9        A.  The Deferred Payment Arrangement is an

10 actual thing.  It's prescribed in the rules and

11 regulations in the Illinois Administrative Code

12 Part 280.  It's actually in the brochure that comes

13 in each and every residential disconnection notice.

14 It describes what the Deferred Payment Arrangement

15 is exactly.  It's a plan to make a down payment and

16 split the installments into monthly payments to be

17 paid in addition to your current bill.  It's a very

18 proscriptive item.  Whereas, the online tool is a

19 scheduled payment.  It's not a deferred payment

20 plan.  It's a scheduled payment, something that you

21 -- you've done, you know, in advance.

22        Q.  Okay.  So if -- and do you send out

23 confirmation numbers to your consumers when they

24 make a payment online, they are given confirmation
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1 numbers?

2        A.  Yes, ma'am.

3        Q.  And they're also provided with e-mails

4 as well?

5        A.  Yes, ma'am.

6        Q.  And are you familiar with on C of my

7 exhibits, the third paragraph down says "Please do

8 not reply to this message, it is simply a

9 notification."

10            If an online -- if a consumer makes an

11 online payment and it's not acceptable, does Ameren

12 contact the consumer to let them know so?

13        A.  That's where the flag would come in

14 beforehand of letting you know that it was not

15 enough to satisfy your balance.  It does allow you

16 to keep going with your payment because some people

17 need to do that, but it's kind of a heads-up that

18 this isn't enough to cover your balance, do you

19 still want to proceed.  That's where that heads-up

20 would come.

21        Q.  Okay.  So you're saying that there was

22 a flag that came up --

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  -- on my -- when I made my payment?
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1        A.  Yes.

2            MS. IMLER:  May I state for the record

3 that I didn't see a flag when I made my payment to

4 Ameren Online?  When I made my scheduled payment --

5            JUDGE YODER:  Well, you are a pro se

6 Complainant and we relax the rules a little bit.

7 So I will allow you to say that, that you did not

8 -- would you say you did not notice that?

9            MS. IMLER:  No, I did not see it at

10 all.  It did not pop up on my screen.  When I made

11 my payment, I was given a confirmation.

12            JUDGE YODER:  So you dispute that?

13            MS. IMLER:  Oh, absolutely.

14            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

15        Q.  So what is the difference if a consumer

16 makes a live representative contact or uses your

17 online system guaranteeing payment for their

18 account?  What's the difference in -- you had

19 stated earlier that had I contacted a live

20 representative that my payment would have been

21 honored, but it is not acceptable for your online

22 system for your consumers to use that tool to make

23 payments?

24        A.  I don't think I said your payment would
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1 not have been honored -- or, your payment would

2 have been honored.  Because what you -- the

3 scheduling of a payment is not a Deferred Payment

4 Agreement.  So the rep would have advised you what

5 is a payment agreement and what that entails.

6 There's a down payment necessary and then there's

7 plans to pay future bills.

8            As I recall, when you scheduled your

9 payment, that was not enough to pay the full bill,

10 so there was, you know, a balance left.  I don't

11 think it was very large.  But that was not

12 addressed at all.

13        Q.  So you -- the hundred dollars that was

14 paid on the 2nd was -- left a balance of 291;

15 correct?

16        A.  Right.

17        Q.  Okay.  And the payment arrangement that

18 I made on the 5th for $500 would have covered the

19 291 plus put the extra -- the $208 towards the bill

20 that wasn't current -- that was not due.  So Ameren

21 would have received $208 prior to being billed for

22 the August bill.  Is that correct?

23        A.  No, in that you did not make a Deferred

24 Payment Arrangement online because that option is



58

1 not available.

2        Q.  Okay.  Are the consumers -- is this

3 listed on your site that customers cannot make

4 these deferred payments online?  Does it advise the

5 consumer when they set up their payments online, do

6 they advise them of -- that they cannot use your

7 site to make these type of payments?

8        A.  They can use the site to schedule

9 payments.  Again, there was the flag that --

10 there's actually two flags in place, one that would

11 have applied in your case just alerting the

12 consumer that they're not addressing the full

13 balance.

14            But in the material that we send, the

15 disconnection notice, it states that you need to

16 call for a deferred payment plan.  It's very clear

17 on the notice.  Also, in the brochure that comes

18 with it, four or five times it says call us

19 immediately, don't wait, call us, here's what a

20 deferred payment plan is, here's how you get one,

21 you call.  So very -- multiple times in that

22 brochure it says to call.  So you have written

23 information that we've -- we've sent.

24        Q.  So generally how long is it before



59

1 Ameren sends out a disconnect notice when someone's

2 utility bill is due?

3        A.  I think -- let's see -- it is three to

4 five days.  In fact, I don't think.  I know.  It's

5 three to five days after your due date a notice is

6 generated.

7            MR. DEARMONT:  I'm sorry.  You said

8 before or after?  I'm confused about which you

9 asked her.

10            MS. IMLER:  I asked generally when is a

11 disconnect notice forwarded to consumers after the

12 bill is due.

13            MR. DEARMONT:  Okay.

14            MS. IMLER:  She said three to five

15 days.

16            MR. DEARMONT:  That's -- that's right.

17 My apologies.  Thank you.

18        Q.  So you would say that if someone

19 utilized your online system and it accepts a

20 person's payment and then it generates confirmation

21 and a confirmation e-mail, that that is not

22 sufficient enough to satisfy paying the bill?

23        A.  That's correct.

24            MS. IMLER:  Okay.  That's it.
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1            MR. DEARMONT:  I have just a few

2 questions on redirect.

3            JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

4                 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

5 QUESTION BY MR. DEARMONT:

6        Q.  Ms. Brown, Deferred Payment

7 Arrangement, or DPA, the Company -- we use that as

8 like a proper noun; right?

9        A.  Correct.

10        Q.  You told us -- I hate to use the word

11 thing, but it's an actual thing.  It's a contract.

12 Right?

13        A.  Correct.

14        Q.  Okay.  And even though you can use

15 Ameren Online to schedule or arrange for payments

16 to be processed in the future, that's not what we

17 would call a proper DPA; correct?

18        A.  Correct.

19        Q.  The $500 that the Imlers I'll say

20 submitted in Ameren Online on August 5th, that

21 would have been processed on August 19th; correct?

22        A.  Correct.

23        Q.  Okay.  That means that the Company

24 received no money on August 5th?
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1        A.  Correct.

2        Q.  And the Company would have received

3 money, the $500, on August 19th, absent any type of

4 intervention?

5        A.  Correct.

6        Q.  Okay.  Why does Ameren Illinois allow

7 customers to schedule a payment after some specific

8 due date?

9        A.  It's a customer convenience.  Different

10 customers have different needs financially.  You

11 know, you might want to schedule payments while

12 you're away on vacation or something like that.

13 Different people have different needs and we try to

14 accommodate as many of those needs as we can.

15        Q.  Ms. Imler talked to you about these

16 like payment -- strike that, please.

17            Ms. Imler talked to you about these

18 transaction confirmation receipts that Ameren

19 Online issues when a customer uses that system.

20 Correct?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  Do you remember that discussion?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  Okay.  Again, I think it's consistent
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1 with your previous testimony, but just because a

2 customer receives a transaction confirmation does

3 not mean that the Company has received the money

4 that would otherwise be subject to that

5 transaction?

6        A.  Correct.

7            MR. DEARMONT:  Those are all the

8 questions that I have.

9            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  Ms. Imler, do

10 you have any objection to the admission of

11 Ms. Brown's testimony in this docket with the --

12            MS. IMLER:  No.

13            JUDGE YODER:  -- with the Exhibit 1.1?

14            All right.  It will be admitted into

15 evidence in this docket.

16                (Ameren Exhibits 1.0 and 1.1

17                admitted.)

18            JUDGE YODER:  Ms. Imler, as I said,

19 you're a pro se Complainant so we relax the rules a

20 little, but you have the opportunity to go last

21 because you have the burden of proof in this

22 docket.  Do you have anything you wish to add to

23 your testimony at this point?

24            MS. IMLER:  When I made my online
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1 agreements, I didn't realize I was doing anything

2 wrong.  I wasn't -- there was no flags that come up

3 on the screen.  There was nothing that advised me

4 that what I was making was not acceptable.  I

5 received a confirmation number.

6            I've used Ameren Online to receive

7 bills.  I do a lot of my banking online.  And I

8 also received a confirmation e-mail.  So at that

9 point I had made a payment.  I believe

10 disconnections are due to nonpayment, and I had

11 made payment plus I had made arrangements to pay my

12 bill on the 19th, which I think is a -- I believe

13 under a legal requirement of an online transaction

14 they still have some legal validity for the

15 consumer.  You make an offer.  They accept and then

16 they give confirmation.

17            I believe online transactions are the

18 same as talking to a live representative.  And if

19 Ameren doesn't allow people to make Deferred

20 Payment Arrangements or make -- allow people to

21 utilize the online system, then it should block the

22 consumer from being able to perform the functions.

23            I merely went online to schedule a

24 payment.  I didn't find there to be a problem with
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1 using the online, and had I would've, I'd have made

2 a phone call to a live representative, because my

3 deferred payment would have been accepted other

4 than me not speaking to a live representative.

5            And I would just think that the legal

6 requirements to satisfy an online transaction,

7 Ameren was paid money, plus they were guaranteed

8 money on the 19th.  And I think that online

9 transactions are legal and binding, and especially

10 when the Company not only gives you a confirmation

11 number but sends you a separate confirmation e-mail

12 that tells you do not contact Ameren, you don't

13 need to do anything further.  A consumer would not

14 know that there was problems with being suspended

15 or disconnected.  Rather, I think Ameren should --

16 if a person makes an online payment and it does not

17 come up to code or whatever Ameren expects from the

18 consumers that they should also note it in the

19 e-mail, allowing a customer to have time -- because

20 after making these payments a full two weeks went

21 by before the disconnection, and it would certainly

22 have given me time to make arrangements had I known

23 that the ones I made online weren't acceptable.

24            So I just think for consumers in
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1 general, Ameren should either update their -- and I

2 was told by a representative that they were making

3 changes to their online accessibilities, that

4 consumers should at least be warned or have some

5 kind of a notice when they make these online

6 transactions thinking that their payment was

7 sufficient.

8            Ameren says that my bills are extremely

9 high through the winter months.  Regardless what

10 size of a place that I live in or energy efficient

11 should have very little bearing on my bills.  My

12 bills have been paid for 20 years.  And a $291 bill

13 I did not think that I was under, you know, any

14 danger of being disconnected or I would have spoke

15 to a live representative.

16            JUDGE YODER:  All right.  That

17 concludes the evidence I think, so I'll have the

18 record marked heard and taken.

19            Why don't we go off the record for a

20 minute.

21                (Discussion off the record.)

22            JUDGE YODER:  The parties have

23 indicated that they believe one round of briefing

24 would be sufficient and indicate that they could
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1 file post-hearing briefs by April 24th, 2014.  The

2 parties have been requested to file Word versions

3 with -- to send Word versions to myself and also

4 will need to file briefs with the Chief Clerk so

5 they can be placed on the e-Docket system.

6            With that, is there anything further,

7 Ms. Imler, today?

8            MS. IMLER:  No, sir.

9            JUDGE YODER:  Anything further from the

10 Company?

11            MR. DEARMONT:  Nothing further from the

12 Company.

13            JUDGE YODER:  All right then, it will

14 be, as I indicated, heard and taken.  I will just

15 await the filing of the briefs.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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